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current standards and disclosure regu-
lations and requirements as Title 5 ap-
pointees.

PART 19—ADJUSTMENT OF CIVIL
MONETARY PENALTIES FOR IN-
FLATION

Sec.
19.1
19.2

Applicability.

Effective Date.

19.3 [Reserved].

19.4 Penalty Adjustment and Table.

AUTHORITY: Pub. L. 101-410, 28 U.S.C. 2461
note; Pub. L. 104-134, 31 U.S.C. 3701 note.

SOURCE: 69 FR 7124, Feb. 13, 2004, unless
otherwise noted.
§19.1 Applicability.

This part applies to each statutory
provision under the laws administered
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by the Environmental Protection
Agency concerning the maximum civil
monetary penalty which may be as-
sessed in either civil judicial or admin-
istrative proceedings.

§19.2 Effective Date.

The increased penalty amounts set
forth in this part apply to all viola-
tions under the applicable statutes and
regulations which occur after March 15,
2004.

§19.3

§19.4 Penalty Adjustment and Table.

The adjusted statutory penalty pro-
visions and their maximum applicable
amounts are set out in Table 1. The
last column in the table provides the
newly effective maximum penalty
amounts.

[Reserved]

TABLE 1 OF SECTION 19.4—CIVIL MONETARY PENALTY INFLATION ADJUSTMENTS

U.S. code citation

Civil monetary penalty description

Penalties effective
between January
30, 1997 and
March 15, 2004

New maximum
penalty amount

7 U.S.C. 1361.(a)(1) ...
7 U.S.C. 1361.(a)(2) ...
15 U.S.C. 2615(a) ......

15 U.S.C. 2647(a) .....

15 U.S.C. 2647(g) ......

31 U.S.C. 3802(a)(1)

31 U.S.C. 3802(a)(2)

33 U.S.C. 1319(d) ......

FEDERAL INSECTICIDE, FUNGICIDE, & RODENTICIDE
ACT CIVIL PENALTY—GENERAL—COMMERCIAL AP-
PLICATORS, ETC.

FEDERAL INSECTICIDE, FUNGICIDE, & RODENTICIDE
ACT CIVIL PENALTY—PRIVATE APPLICATORS—FIRST
AND SUBSEQUENT OFFENSES OR VIOLATIONS.

TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL ACT CIVIL PENALTY .......

ASBESTOS HAZARD EMERGENCY RESPONSE ACT CIVIL
PENALTY.

ASBESTOS HAZARD EMERGENCY RESPONSE ACT—
CONTRACTOR VIOLATIONS.

PROGRAM FRAUD CIVIL REMEDIES ACT/VIOLATION IN-
VOLVING FALSE CLAIM.

PROGRAM FRAUD CIVIL REMEDIES ACT/VIOLATION IN-
VOLVING FALSE STATEMENT.

CLEAN WATER ACT VIOLATION/CIVIL JUDICIAL PENALTY

33 U.S.C. CLEAN WATER ACT VIOLATION/ADMINISTRATIVE PEN-
1319(0)(2)(A). ALTY PER VIOLATION AND MAXIMUM.

33 U.S.C. CLEAN WATER ACT VIOLATION/ADMINISTRATIVE PEN-
1319(g)(2)(B). ALTY PER VIOLATION AND MAXIMUM.

33 U.S.C. CLEAN WATER ACT VIOLATION/ADMIN PENALTY OF
1321(b)(6)(B)()- SEC 311(b)(3)&(j) PER VIOLATION AND MAXIMUM.

33 U.S.C. CLEAN WATER ACT VIOLATION/ADMIN PENALTY OF
1321(b)(6)(B)(ii)- SEC 311(b)(3)&(j) PER VIOLATION AND MAXIMUM.

33 U.S.C. CLEAN WATER ACT VIOLATION/CIVIL JUDICIAL PENALTY
1321(b)(7)(A). OF SEC 311(b)(3)—PER VIOLATION PER DAY OR PER

BARREL OR UNIT.

33 US.C. CLEAN WATER ACT VIOLATION/CIVIL JUDICIAL PENALTY
1321(b)(7)(B). OF SEC 311(c)&(e)(1)(B).

33 US.C. CLEAN WATER ACT VIOLATION/CIVIL JUDICIAL PENALTY
1321(b)(7)(C). OF SEC 311()).

33 U.S.C. CLEAN WATER ACT VIOLATION/MINIMUM CIVIL JUDICIAL
1321(b)(7)(D). PENALTY OF SEC 311(b)(3)—PER VIOLATION OR PER

33 U.S.C. 1414b(d) ....

33 U.S.C. 1415(a) ......

BARREL/UNIT.

MARINE PROTECTION, RESEARCH & SANCTUARIES ACT
VIOL SEC 104b(d).

MARINE PROTECTION RESEARCH AND SANCTUARIES
ACT VIOLATIONS—FIRST & SUBSEQUENT VIOLA-
TIONS.
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$27,500 .
$5,500 ...

$27,500 .......cocoe.
$11,000/$27,500 ..

$11,000/$137,500
$11,000/$27,500 ..
$11,000/$137,500
$27,500 or $1,100

per barrel or
unit.

$110,000 or
$3,300 per bar-
rel or unit.

$660 ...

$55,000/$137,500

$6,500
$650/$1,200
$32,500
$6,500
$5,500
$6,500
$6,500

$32,500
$11,000/$32,500

$11,000/$157,500

$11,000/$32,500

$11,000/$157,500

$32,500 or $1,100
per barrell or
unit

$32,500

$32,500

$130,000 or
$4,300 per bar-
rel or unit.

$760

$65,000/$157,500



